
 

FINAL 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
of the 

HARRIS CHAIN OF LAKES RESTORATION COUNCIL 
 

October 13, 2006 
 
The October meeting of the Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council (Council) was held 
at 9:00 AM on October 13, 2006 at the Lake County Board of County Commissioners’ 
Chambers, 315 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida. 
 
Members Present Members Absent 
Skip Goerner, Chairman    Hugh (Dave) Davis II, Vice Chairman 
Rick Powers, P.G., Secretary    Keith Farner 
Robert Kaiser, P.E.     Don Nicholson 
Richard Royal      Edward M. Schlein, M.D. 
       Ted Woodrell 
    
1.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
Chairman Skip Goerner called the meeting to order at 9:10 AM.   
 
2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Invocation was given by Councilman Bob Kaiser, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
3.  ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Goerner called roll.  Vice Chairman Dave Davis and Council members Keith 
Farner, Don Nicholson, Edward M. Schlein, and Ted Woodrell were absent.  Councilman 
Kaiser made a motion that the Council function as a “Committee as a Whole” to conduct 
business in the absence of a quorum.  The motion passed by unanimous vote of attending 
members. 
 
Gene Caputo of the St. Johns River Water Management District (SJRWMD) notified the 
Council that Dr. Larry Battoe of the SJRWMD and member of the Technical Advisory 
Group (TAG) to the Council had recently suffered a heart attack and would not be 
attending the meeting.  Chairman Goerner requested that Mr. Caputo send Dr. Battoe a 
card from the Council.  Mr. Caputo agreed. 
 
4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 2 of 9 

 

 

Mr. Caputo handed out an updated version of the September meeting minutes, stating that 
he had requested a modification to the minutes after they were sent to the Council.  The 
Council received the updated minutes and no further action was taken due to the lack of a 
quorum. 
 
5.  DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Continuing Services Contract for Recording Secretary 
Mr. Caputo explained that the SJRWMD had conducted the bid opening for the position of 
Recording Secretary to the Council and accepted the bid submitted by Patrick Hunter of 
Hunter Environmental Consulting, Inc.  He said that the total for the three year contract is 
$74,310 at a rate of $24,770 per year.  Mr. Hunter added that the contract will run from 
December 1, 2006 through November 30, 2009.  Chairman Goerner asked if the contract 
would encumber the Council for three years even if they cease to exist.  Mr. Caputo said 
no. 
 
A vote to accept the information received passed with three approving votes and Chairman 
Goerner casting a dissenting vote.  Chairman Goerner requested a copy of the contract for 
review.  Mr. Caputo said that all of the Council members will receive the contract packages 
once the review and verification of Mr. Hunter’s proposal is completed by the SJRWMD. 
 
Funding Request to the LCWA, Status; Skip Goerner 
Mike Perry, Executive Director of the Lake County Water Authority (LCWA) said that the 
LCWA Board of Trustees (Board) had given final approval for their Fiscal Year (FY) 
2006-2007 Budget and that funding provided by them for operation of the Council was 
approved.  He explained that at the end of their fiscal year, the LCWA sends a purchase 
order to the SJRWMD for an amount not to exceed the $40,000 received by the Council for 
operating expenses minus the $10,000 provided by the SJRWMD and the in-kind funding 
match.  Mr. Perry said that for the past fiscal year, that amount was approximately $18,000.  
Chairman Goerner offered his appreciation to the LCWA Board for their continued funding 
support. 
 
Chairman Goerner then discussed the funding received by the Council from their 2005-
2006 Funding Initiative from the Florida Legislature.  He provided the following summary 
of that funding: 
 
 Requested    Purpose    Received 
 

$300,000   Largemouth Bass Restocking                        $147,800 
$300,000       Revegetation of Aquatic Habitat/Cypress Tree Planting         $147,800 
$150,000  Invasive Aquatic Plant Management             $ 73,900 
$750,000                   $369,500 

 
Chairman Goerner explained that when the Council made their request for funding from 
the Legislature, that it was a lump sum request for $750,000.  He said that it is up to the 
Council to decide how that money is spent.  Chairman Goerner asked Mr. Caputo to 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 

prepare a resolution for the Council to transfer the $369,500 they received, to the LCWA 
for the projects as outlined.  Mr. Caputo said he would provide the resolution at the next 
Council meeting.   
 
Chairman Goerner went on to say that of the $2 million requested by the Council in their 
2005-2006 Funding Initiative to assist with the Lake Griffin access canal dredging, they 
received $850,000.  He then asked if that money had been transferred to the LCWA.  Mr. 
Perry said they are moving forward with an agreement from the SJRWMD to transfer those 
funds. 
 
Councilman Richard Royal asked if the LCWA has any flexibility as to how the money 
transferred to them is spent.  Mr. Perry said that how the funds are spent is outlined in an 
agreement with the SJRWMD and approved by the Council, therefore there is limited 
flexibility.  One of the areas of flexibility he discussed included the installation of gravel 
beds at Venetian Gardens to improve aquatic habitat.  Mr. Perry said that a portion of the 
funding received could be used for that effort. 
 
Chairman Goerner also notified the Council that although it was approved by the 
Legislature, Governor Jeb Bush vetoed the $250,000 the Council requested to assist in 
funding a toxic algae study in the Harris Chain of Lakes (HCOL). 
 
6.  PRESENTATIONS 
 
Draft Review – 2006 Legislative Report; Patrick Hunter 
Chairman Goerner opened the discussion with comments and edits to the draft annual 
report.  The edits focused on three main topics of the report including Legislative funding 
received, the Council’s 2006-2007 Funding Initiative, and their level of support for various 
restoration projects on the HCOL. 
 
During the discussion of the draft annual report, Bill Johnson of the Florida Fish and 
Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWCC) said that they are gearing up the Richloam 
State Fish Hatchery to begin stocking various lakes in the Harris Chain.  He said they are 
considering stocking Lake Apopka in addition to other lakes.  Mr. Johnson suggested that if 
the Council were to request funding for bass restocking, the FWCC may consider offering 
matching funds for those efforts.  Chairman Goerner and the Council members present 
agreed to include $500,000 in their 2006-2007 Funding Initiative for bass restocking. 
 
Mr. Johnson also mentioned that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP) has funds available for revegetation efforts that the FWCC could request, which 
could offset funds received by the Council for aquatic revegetation.  He suggested that the 
Council could then use funding received for other projects, including the sport fish 
restocking.   
 
Mr. Johnson then discussed the success of gravel beds to improve aquatic habitat.  He 
explained that the City of Eustis has constructed gravel beds that have worked very well in 
improving aquatic habitat.  He said that Steve Crawford of the FWCC has been reviewing 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

that work and has more information, if the Council is interested in learning more about the 
matter.  Chairman Goerner also mentioned that the City of Leesburg has offered matching 
funds to install gravel beds in some of their lakes.  After additional discussion, Chairman 
Goerner and attending Council members agreed to include $250,000 in their 2006-2007 
Funding Initiative for the combined efforts of revegetation, aquatic habitat improvements 
and cypress tree plantings. 
 
Mr. Johnson also notified the Council that recently the FWCC, in conjunction with the 
University of Florida (UF), had collected a large number of fish on which they intend to 
perform tissue sampling to determine any effects from toxic algae.  After additional 
discussion on the efforts of Florida LAKEWATCH volunteers and the Florida Department 
of Health (FDOH) to sample and monitor for potentially toxic algae in the lakes, the 
attending Council members agreed to include $250,000 in their 2006-2007 Funding 
Initiative to assist in those efforts. 
 
There was also discussion of the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Program during 
which Councilman Richard Royal asked; when the FDEP developed the individual TMDLs 
for each lake, did they differentiate between external [nutrient] loading to the lakes versus 
the loading coming from upstream lakes.  Barbara Bess of the FDEP said that she was not 
certain and would get an answer to the question prior to the next Council meeting. 
 
After extensive discussion of edits and comments to the annual report, the Council decided 
to provide additional comments to Mr. Hunter via email. 
 
Agency Updates 
Other than the issues discussed during the review of the draft annual report, Mr. Johnson 
(FWCC) said that he did not have any additional updates for the Council. 
 
Mr. Perry (LCWA) provided an update to the Council saying that due to reduced rainfall 
during the Summer, the lake levels are lower than desired as they move into the dry season 
and provided the following data: 
 
 Lake  Current Level  Minimum Desirable Level Regulatory Schedule 
 Apopka      55.6 feet  66.5 feet   67.2 feet 
 Eustis       61.6 feet  62 feet    63.1 feet 
 Harris       61.6 feet  62 feet    63.1 feet 
 Dora       61.6 feet  62 feet    63.1 feet 
 Griffin       58 feet  58 feet    59.1 feet 
 
Mr. Perry went on to say that the experts are predicting an El Niño influenced Winter 
which will be wetter and warmer than normal.  Councilman Powers asked if the dredging 
schedule on the Lake Griffin canals will be affected by the lower lake levels.  Mr. Perry 
said he had spoken with the dredging contractor and they do not anticipate any delays due 
to the drier conditions.  He added that the area HCOL is approximately 16 inches below 
their average annual rainfall. 
 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

Councilman Royal asked if the lower lake levels are a benefit to the planting of near shore 
aquatic vegetation.  Mr. Perry said that it is easier to plant aquatic vegetation but the 
elevation of the planting areas must be determined so the plants are not drowned when lake 
levels return to normal. 
 
Mr. Perry also mentioned that the Clairmont Chain of Lakes had experienced blue-green 
algal blooms earlier this Summer and that samples were collected and sent to Dr. Daniel 
Canfield’s laboratory at the UF for analysis.  He said that one of the blooms was 
determined to include Microcystis and the toxin Microcystin was present at 3 micrograms 
per liter (µg/L) which is above the 1 µg/L concentration for drinking water but well below 
the 20 µg/L concentration standard for recreational use.  Councilman Kaiser asked if there 
is any airborne hazard by this toxin.  Mr. Perry said that does not appear to be a problem. 
 
With respect to the Lake Griffin access canal dredging Mr. Perry said that they had 
completed Channel 13 and were moving forward with Channel 14.  He also discussed 
issues of water quality and turbidity within the disposal area saying that possibly due to the 
alum and polymers injected in the water as it is discharges, the installed turbidity barriers 
appear to be experiencing deterioration.  He said that water quality at the site remains 
within the parameters set forth in their permit to operate the disposal site.  Mr. Perry said 
they will continue to monitor that situation.  He also said that the dredging contract had 
been extended until November 2007 and expects the project will be completed by that time.   
 
Mr. Perry then discussed the Lake Beauclair dredging project saying that they have agreed 
on a “footprint” of the disposal facility and they are authorizing BCI Engineers to complete 
the engineering plans for the project.  He said that they continue to review alternative 
technologies to complete this work; one of which involves a conveyor press that reportedly 
can dewater sediments onsite, prior to being trucked to a disposal facility.  Councilman 
Rick Powers said he was familiar with that technology and understands that the volume of 
sediments that can be processed is not as large as might be needed for large scale projects.  
Mr. Perry said that he had heard that issue and they intend to allow the dredging contractor 
to pump at a greater rate than is being pumped in the Lake Griffin canals. 
 
Chairman Goerner noted that he had recently read an article in the Orlando Sentinel which 
said the SJRWMD was not going to assist in the funding for the Lake Beauclair project.  
Mr. Perry explained that the LCWA is continuing to review the issue of sediments in the 
Apopka-Beauclair Canal and have requested an analysis of the velocity of water that would 
be required to move sediments down the canal and into Lake Beauclair.  He said once that 
information is received, they may reinitiate talks with the SJRWMD on dredging the 
Apopka-Beauclair Canal. 
 
Chairman Goerner expressed his concern that if velocities of discharges down the canal are 
in the 1,000- 1,500 cubic feet per second range as they were during the hurricanes of 2005, 
that large quantities of sediments will flow into Lake Beauclair from the canal.   
 
Councilman Powers also suggested that dredging the Apopka-Beauclair Canal should be a 
consideration in conjunction with the lake Beauclair dredging because the permitting of 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 

such a project is very difficult.  He believes that including that dredging now in the current 
permit application may save a lot of time and effort in the future. 
 
Ms. Bess (FDEP) provided a handout and brief update on the Channeled Apple Snail by 
answering questions posed by Council members during her presentation at the September 
Council meeting.  With respect to the issue of the rat lung parasite asked by Councilman 
Kaiser, she said that it can also be found in other host creatures besides the channeled apple 
snail.  Ms. Bess also addressed a question by Councilman Keith Farner as to why the issue 
of channeled apple snails was not addressed when first discovered in Florida lakes in the 
1970s.  She explained that at the time they were not expected to spread as much as they 
have.  Ms. Bess went on to say that more study of the bilge water released by ships is going 
to be conducted by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency because it may be the source 
of other exotic species that are entering the state, such as the zebra mussel. 
 
Ms. Bess also mentioned an article in the Orlando Sentinel saying that another variety of 
channeled apple snail exists in south Florida.  She said that the representative from the 
FDEP may attend an upcoming meeting on the new species of snail in the near future. 
Copies of her handouts and the newspaper article are provided in Attachment 1 of these 
minutes. 
 
Ms. Bess also briefly discussed the progress of the TMDL program saying there is ongoing 
review of the Basin Management Action Plan (BMAP) being conducted and finalizing the 
plan has been postponed while they continue to discuss various actions that can be taken to 
meet the goals of the program. 
 
Chairman Goerner asked if the channeled apple snail can be eaten.  Ms Bess said that 
although they are eaten in some parts of the world, she would caution against it because of 
the potential for the rat lung parasite. 
 
7.  COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Caputo provided an additional update on the status of Dr. Battoe saying that he had 
been in contact with him via email during the meeting and said that he is still at Shands 
Hospital in Gainesville.  He also said that Dr. Battoe has experienced damage to his heart 
muscle due to the heart attack, but is currently doing better.  Additionally, Dr. Battoe did 
not know when he would be released from the hospital. 
 
Mr. Caputo then provided a copy of the 2007 Council meeting date schedule.  A copy of 
that schedule is provided as Attachment 2. 
 
Council Member Comments 
Chairman Goerner notified the Council that he was scheduled for heart surgery on October 
24th and he may not be able to attend the November 3rd meeting.  He suggested that it may 
be necessary to schedule a meeting for the middle of November to finalize the annual 
report.   
 



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting – October 13, 2006 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 

Mr. Caputo suggested that a second meeting in November may be necessary so that 
Chairman Goerner could attend.  Additionally, Mr. Caputo said that Mr. Hunter would 
have a week to incorporate any additional comments from the Council either via email or 
from the first meeting in November.   
 
Mr. Hunter said that his contract with the SJRWMD specifies that the final report will be 
delivered to them by November 17th.  He further suggested that any additional comments 
that will be provided by the Council via email, be submitted by a certain deadline. 
 
Mr. Caputo suggested that the comments should be submitted by the Council at least one 
week before the draft report is due to the SJRWMD, prior to the next meeting.  Mr. Hunter 
said he would send out an email to the Council members announcing the deadline for 
additional comments. 
 
No additional Council member comments were made. 
 
Discussion of November 3, 2006 Meeting 
Mr. Caputo suggested that the Council move forward with the November 3rd meeting date 
to continue review of the annual report and possibly keep November 10th open for a second 
meeting to finalize the report, when Chairman Goerner may be present.  He then provided a 
brief summary of the agenda items for the November meeting: 
 

• Discussion of the Draft Annual Report to the Legislature 
• Presentation of the Resolution for Transfer of Funding to the LCWA 

 
8.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No public comments were made. 
 
9.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:34 AM. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chairman Skip Goerner 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary Rick Powers, P.G. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachment 1 

 
 

Channeled Apple Snail Information 
 

presented by 
 

Barbra Bess 
 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
 

October 13, 2006 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 

 

 
 
 

 
Attachment 2 

 
 

Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council 
 

2007 Meeting Schedule 
 

 






